Academic Senate Executive Committee Minutes
Monday, October 29, 2018

Approved
Call to Order

Senate Chairperson Susan Kalter called the meeting to order.  

Senator Kalter: I'm going to skip down to the approval of the proposed Senate agenda because all of the stuff in front of it is about that agenda, and so we might as well sort of have the motion on the floor and discuss it while we're doing that.  
**Approval of Proposed Senate Agenda– See pages below**
Proposed Academic Senate Meeting Agenda

Wednesday, November 7, 2018
7:00 P.M.

OLD MAIN ROOM, BONE STUDENT CENTER
Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Chairperson's Remarks

Student Body President's Remarks

Administrators' Remarks

· President Larry Dietz

· Provost Jan Murphy

· Vice President of Student Affairs Levester Johnson

· Vice President of Finance and Planning Dan Stephens
Advisory Items:
Council for Teacher Education annual report (Kevin Laudner, Interim Dean of College of Education and Deb Garrahy)

Action Items: NONE

Information Items:

10.25.18.01 Policy 2.1.16 Tuberculosis Screening for International Students MARKUP (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)

10.25.18.02 Policy 2.1.16 Tuberculosis Screening for International Students CLEAN (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)

10.25.18.03 Policy 3.1.45 Recruitment MARKUP (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)
10.25.18.04 Policy 3.1.45 Recruitment CLEAN (Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee)
Consent Agenda Items: NONE

Academic Affairs Committee: Senator Pancrazio
Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Senator Marx
Faculty Affairs Committee: Senator Crowley
Planning and Finance Committee: Senator Mainieri
Rules Committee: Senator Horst
Communications

Adjournment
Motion by Senator Marx, seconded by Senator Horst, to approve the agenda.

Senator Kalter: So, a couple of decisions we need to make.  Going back to what Cera just handed out, you'll see that John Davenport…  We had a quick e-mail back and forth because I was reading the Faculty Caucus minutes and noticed something and sent it to him.  And John Davenport e-mailed me back and he said, hey, can we come and speak to the Senate to get feedback for the Multicultural Center?  And I was like, well, it depends on when you want to come, but my personal answer is that would be great.  But you'll see that on the proposed agenda we were planning to have the IBHE Faculty Advisory Council report, which is actually not an annual report.  It's just a periodic report, but it hasn't happened in a while.  We could keep that there, or we could have him talking to us about the Multicultural Center and getting feedback from everybody.  I don't think it would be advisable to do both, especially if we have Deb Garrahy attending to talk about the CTE Annual Report.  And I'm actually going to suggest that we move the Textbook Affordability, University Library Committee and UHP, that we space those out over the next several meetings because I think that all of them kind of deserve to have people coming.  Like Textbook Affordability Committee, they've never reported in person to the Senate.  And I think this is their first annual report and it's been, what, two or three years?  And we had that question about the representation, so I would suggest we move that one to December, University Library Committee to January, and then the Student Code Ad Hoc Committee is working so it would make sense to move the University Hearing Panel and Appeals Panel report to later in the year to kind of coincide with what's going on with that committee.  Does that sound right to everybody to just do the one Council for Teacher Ed Annual Report?

Senator Horst: Especially since she's coming, I believe, to the Rules Committee.

Senator Kalter: Yes, that's right.  I forgot about that.  So Deb Garrahy can do a two-fer that night.  She can go to Rules Committee and talk about CTE bylaws and then come to the Senate as a whole and talk about the annual report.  Awesome.  What do you guys think about IBHE-FAC report versus Multicultural Center gathering of feedback?

Senator Mainieri: I think doing the Multicultural Center as soon as possible so that our feedback can be part of the process early on I think would be appropriate.

Senator Kalter: That was my read.

Senator Marx: It would be nice to know that they're thinking.  The FAC report generally doesn't have a lot of information in it.

Senator Kalter: Right, yes.  Or it's information that we can get in other ways or what have you.  

Senator Marx: Or in written form.

Senator Kalter: Yeah.  Great, okay.  Now my one concern about this is he does say, "We generally ask for a minimum of 30 minutes."  Now, there's not a ton of other stuff, right?  There is Deb's part of the meeting and obviously the Administrator Remarks, Chairperson and Student Body President, and then I have a feeling that the information items aren't going to take up a huge amount of time.  So does giving him a minimum of 30 minutes seem reasonable?  And when they say a minimum of 30 minutes, you know how that goes.  Martha and I are going to have to be real careful about, hey, you're at 35.  Wrap this up.  Does that seem reasonable to everybody that those things could probably happen all in the same night?

Senator Marx: Does that 30 minutes include questions, or is that just the presentation part?

Senator Kalter: Larry, do you know?  Have you seen any of this or have you talked to anybody about what they're doing?

President Dietz: No.  I think it's a great idea, though, to have it sooner versus later.  I will say that for that meeting that's the Board of Trustee retreat, so none of the Vice Presidents will be there, nor will I be there.

Senator Kalter: Okay, because I had mentioned that retreat to either Brent or somebody, and they seemed like they were saying well, I'm not going to have to be there.  And it might have been…

President Dietz: Well, that's changed.  And there's a possibility that they might be able to get out of there and get back early, but that afternoon is consumed with all of them and then we've got traffic from Chicago.  The meeting is in Chicago.  

Senator Kalter: Now that I think about it, it was Brent and we were talking about his Friday morning meeting, not the Wednesday evening meeting.  So maybe that's why he said that's not going to impact.

President Dietz: But I know that I can't be there because I'm presenting after they all present.

Senator Kalter: So that will make that really efficient because you guys usually take about 20 minutes or more.  So that will be a good substitution there.  Great, awesome.  All right.  Remember that we have a motion on the floor, but let's go back, then, to Distributed Communications.  

Distributed Communications
10.22.18.01 From Jim Pancrazio: Email from Academic Affairs
University Library Committee annual report (Advisory item 11/07/18)
University Hearing Panel and University Appeals Board annual report (Advisory item 11/07/18)

10.22.18.02 Response to questions about the University Hearing Panel annual report
Senator Kalter: I'm going to read Jim Pancrazio's e-mail.  He says, "We are planning to send…"   something that Cera asked him about, the UHP Annual Report, up with the minutes.  So we have that.  He says, "Please note that we also had some follow-up from the Textbook Affordability Committee.  Michaelene Cox provided us with the results of two surveys conducted last year regarding textbook costs.  The Executive Committee should note that the samples were very small," (true) "and if we are going to get useful information we need a larger sample.  This implies having deans and chairs involved in the survey process and perhaps including information on textbooks in our teaching evaluations to ensure it does not slip through the cracks."  And then he says, "As the AAC requested, I informed the UHP that we would prefer a narrative rather than raw data."  I'm not sure I like that "rather than."  I would like, actually…

Senator Marx: In addition to.

Senator Kalter: Yes.  

Senator Horst: I had never seen this data.  It was fascinating.

Senator Kalter: Yes.  I think it's actually really important to keep doing the…  Can you, Cera, reinforce that by e-mailing Mike Zajac and just letting him know that Exec would like them to continue the raw data and do the narrative?

Senator Nikolaou: And I think he meant in addition to the raw data, because we just asked for some numbers that we didn't know why they changed significantly to give us a response.  So they sent Jim an e-mail saying that, okay, that's the answer to your question.  So that we still want the raw data, but then also tell us if there are any noteworthy trends or something that changed significantly.  Tell us what we may not directly see from the data.

Textbook Affordability Committee annual report (Advisory item 11/07/18)

10.22.18.03 Response Michaelene Cox TAC

10.22.18.04 TAC Summary report of administrator survey

10.22.18.05 Textbook Affordability Student Survey Results
Senator Kalter: Gotcha, gotcha.  Okay, so he just maybe mistyped?  Okay.  So he said, "I told them that they need to be explicit about the Senate to know about the trends," like you just said.  Okay, great.  So the first thing that they are sending up with that memo is the Textbook Affordability Annual Report, and this is the one that we're thinking we can put this one off until December.  We might as well, though, talk about it now.  Did anybody have any observations that they need to bring up today at all?  

Senator Marx: It's very disappointing that the faculty was not more responsive to this survey.  We only had a few of the entire faculty actually respond to this.  It was very good…  I thought it was quite a bit of feedback from the students, which was very helpful, but not the faculty.

Senator Kalter: My impression was, and maybe I'm wrong, but my impression was that that survey was sent not to the faculty but to the department chairs.

Senator Marx: Correct.

Senator Kalter: And I was disappointed in that.

Senator Marx: That was the mistake.

Senator Kalter: That only 9 of the 35 department chairs responded.  I was like, wow.

Senator Marx: Exactly.  

Senator Kalter: I do wonder what time of year it was put out, because if it was April, I don't blame them.

Senator Marx: I thought it was in the spring.  It could be.  They do mention it some place.

Senator Kalter: That might mean…  It's too bad the Provost isn't here because I would be saying, can you ask your deans to ask your chairs to actually fill out that information?  The only other thing that I had was I don't think that co-chairs are permitted by the Senate bylaws, and they say that they elected co-chairs.  So we might want to communicate with them about that.  In number four they say, "Meet with Senate Executive Committee as requested to discuss viability and concerns of Textbook Affordability Committee."  I'm wondering if people think it's better that they meet, at some point, with the Rules Committee since Rules does the external committee stuff.

Senator Horst: To meet with us to discuss the viability of…

Senator Kalter: I think they mean the viability of the committee at all.  And I think this is based on that Exec meeting where we were all sitting over here because the table was…  And we were talking.  It started because we didn't have a senator that could serve on the committee, but I think we brought up some other issues about the Textbook Affordability Committee that they may be talking about.  It's a long time ago, so I don't have the minutes memorized.

Senator Horst: I do remember that.

Senator Kalter: And I wouldn't necessarily say that it would have to be this year, but what I'm asking is, in general is it better for them to come meet with us here or to meet with Rules Committee, which does the external Senate committees?  

Senator Horst: Right.  That would be Rules.  So we could put it on the issues pending list and say just consider the viability of the Textbook Affordability Committee.  I don't know if we'll get there this year with our revision of the Blue Book.  I'm not sure we'll get to the revision of the Blue Book.  But we could put it on the list and it would be a pretty straightforward thing.

Senator Kalter: Yeah.  And I think we could…  Are they the ones that…  Maybe they're not the ones that were changing their charge.  Even if you do get to the Blue Book this year, you could still edit their charge without meeting with them.  You know, just do the editorial of the charge and then meet with them about the bigger issue.  Okay, great.  Anything else on Textbook Affordability things or the other stuff?

Senator Horst: I would just note that it would be difficult to include information on textbooks and teaching evaluations without a lot of discussion on the department level of changing the teaching evaluations.  We'd have to go through a lot of shared governance to do that.

Senator Mainieri: And it seems like the information we need is more from faculty as opposed to…  I mean, more information from the students is always great, but we got a fairly okay response rate from students.  

Senator Kalter: From students.  We need it more from faculty.  Yeah.  That's a good point.  One of the things that I noticed on the student survey results…   I was thinking back to how much books cost.  And of course I went to school in California so my scale is pretty off, but when I read the first page I was like, so why are textbooks such a focus at a maximum of about $400 a year when rent, board, tuition and fees are all over $400 often per month, right?  Then I turned to the back and it's fairly clear.  First of all, the grand total on average was way over $400, which was interesting because these two tables don't correspond.  But then, College of Nursing being $1000 and a couple others being $600 or more, you get to see how the differential goes.  I was also extremely disappointed in the students in the College of Arts and Sciences for not reading the books that you assign them.

Senator Marx: Imagine that.

Senator Kalter: Imagine that!  I'm not sure what's going on there.  

President Dietz: I have three reactions to this.  One is that I'm always a little surprised that we don't take advantage of the company that we contract with to provide us information that's really kind of national information, but it gives a context.  And Barnes and Noble has that.  I mean, they know more about textbooks than anybody.  And so I'm a little surprised that we don't avail ourselves of the knowledge that they have about kind of textbooks broadly and what are the trends at one time.  You know, eTextbooks were supposedly going to be the lion's share.  Well, that never really happened.  But to somehow auger in data, information that they have, that kind of helps to inform.  And I would imagine they also have a lot of data specific to ISU. 
Then the other piece of that is that the survey is two years old, and a lot has changed in the business in that timeframe.  I frankly was shocked that the dollar amount is so low.  I would have thought it would have been higher.  So I'm not sure that this is representative anymore.  
And the third piece is the Financial Aid office puts together costs of education every year.  They have to do that to give out financial aid.  And one line item in that are books, and I'm not sure what they use, you know, to build their budget.  So those are just things that I think would inform this discussion, so I'd just make those suggestions.

Senator Kalter: I can speak to the first piece.  As Senate chair, I do not feel comfortable inviting one vendor of books into the Senate meetings as a whole.  I think that implies that we have a favored vendor, and we do not.

President Dietz: Well, we do.  Yes, we do.

Senator Kalter: No, we don't.  

President Dietz: We have one contract.

Senator Kalter: We have a contract with a bookstore.  We don't have a contract for the books.

President Dietz: That's true, but the University has one bookstore, and that's it.

Senator Kalter: Yes.  So I will just say I don't want to invite them into a large Senate meeting where it appears as though we're favoring them over either the Alamo or buy.com or Amazon or what have you because I think that it's important that students…  And also public perception is not that we are…  That Barnes and Noble does not report to you.  Right?  They report to their corporate office, and I think it's important for us to keep that separation.

President Dietz: I'm not suggesting they be included in any meetings, but they have data.  And the bottom line is that they're the only organization that has a contract with this University.  I understand the dynamic and Alamo II, and that's basically Follett.  

Senator Kalter: It's what?

President Dietz: Follett.  This isn't a mom and pop shop over here.

Senator Kalter: Oh, Follett.  Gotcha, gotcha.  Okay.

President Dietz: It's Follett.  They're the largest bookstore in the country.

Senator Kalter: And I'm not sure that they're Barnes and Noble's main competitor.  I think it's possible that it's online is the main competitor, but I'm not sure.  

President Dietz: There aren't as many as there used to be, but I'm just saying that there is an awareness of the major corporations – and you can ask Follett, but I'm not suggesting they be a part of any deliberations – but they do have a ton of information or they wouldn't be in the business.  So, that's all.

Senator Horst: And one thing that my college does and my department does that I noted wasn't necessarily happening across the University is we collaborate to use textbooks in four or five different classes.  We make a concerted effort to do that, and it seems like this committee could really try to foster that sort of collaboration.  If there could be some overlap between courses and faculty could find that overlap, then they could help students out.

Senator Kalter: Yeah, I think that's an obviously where appropriate type of thing because in an English department, we need diversity of textbooks.

Senator Horst: Of course.

Senator Kalter: And also changing out of textbooks as, you know, you're talking about different subjects.  So it's appropriate to a lot of disciplines; it's not appropriate to every discipline.  But, yeah.  I thought that was interesting to see that data about how many people do that or don't do that.

Senator Horst: Right.  But if they could encourage faculty to perhaps find those moments of overlap.  That's one thing I think the committee could do somehow.

Senator Campbell: Going off the fact that some of us are so surprised by how low the numbers are, I don't see it anywhere, but it would be interesting to see…  On the back there is like the sum of did not get textbook.  I'll be honest, I fall into that category because certain classes the book is not always required, and then there's also some classes where you can get away with not really…  You know what I mean?  It's lecture heavy, so most of the tests are on the PowerPoint rather than the book.  And that's just how class structure is.  So I'd be interested in seeing how much it's proposed in your course syllabus that you would pay.  So if you did buy all the books that are required or proposed, like how much would that total be rather than just how much did you pay?  Does that make sense?

Senator Kalter: Yeah, and actually I've thought about asking students that, or telling students that, I should say, but then you don't know who's buying it used.  Right?  There's such a range that it's hard to sort of tell students, well, this is how much you're going to pay because then they're like, I paid half of that or I paid twice that.  You know, that kind of thing.  One of the things we ought to do when we send it in December is send all of the rest of this information with the annual report so that we have a robust conversation about it.  

University Library Committee annual report (Advisory item 11/07/18)
Senator Kalter: University Library Committee's annual report.  Anything on that one to discuss now?  They would be coming around January.  Thomas Burr, I think, has been chair of that committee for at least three or four years.

Senator Horst: Oh, is this the one where they were saying people weren't attending?

Senator Kalter: Yes.

Senator Horst: And I was wondering when we do our request for volunteers if we could post committee times like these, when they tend to be, so that we don't get in this situation where people volunteer for a committee and then they have a class on Thursday nights, and they always have a class on Thursday nights and they can't be on the committee.

Senator Kalter: Yeah.  I was actually going to one-up it and ask you to put it in the Blue Book so that when people are reading about the committee they see, oh, CTE meets at 2:00 on Tuesdays.  Or, University Curriculum Committee meets at 3-something on Wednesdays.

Senator Horst: But then we would have to edit the Blue Book, i.e. the bylaws, every time that changed.

Senator Kalter: But it never changes.

Senator Horst: Okay.

Senator Kalter: So it's very continuous.  And in fact, a couple years ago I encouraged Bruce Stoffel to take a look at that for Academic Planning Committee because Academic Planning Committee was sort of…  He was having to find a time every single fall when everybody could meet.  And I said, Bruce, you know, a lot of Senate committees just set a time.  It seems like it would be a lot easier on you and on everybody else if we just did that.  And so it's been like that for a year or two and it's been working.  Okay.  So, nothing on the Library Committee in terms of substance.  Let's go to University Hearing Panel.

University Hearing Panel and University Appeals Board annual report (Advisory item 11/07/18)

10.22.18.02 Response to questions about the University Hearing Panel annual report
Senator Kalter: Anything on that that we need to talk about right now?

Senator Horst: Lots of interesting data.

Senator Kalter: Lots of very interesting, eye-opening data.  Yes.

Senator Marx: It looks like the majority of the cases are solved informally.  

Senator Kalter: Yes.

Senator Marx: There was a place…  I'm not sure what that means.

Senator Kalter: You are sitting next to the person that can answer that question best.

President Dietz: Well, maybe.

Senator Marx: Most cases are solved informally.  What does that mean?  This line right here.

President Dietz: Oh, here?  I think for the most part, the person admits that they did something wrong and then there's no reason for as much deliberation into a formal hearing process.  And frankly, most do.  You know, you'll end up…  There are a couple of assumptions that people make about conduct code, and this goes back years ago so my experience is dated on this.  But I actually did conduct code hearings at one point in my career.  There's an assumption, I think, that everybody is going to kind of fight the charges that they have against them and most, frankly, don't.  They did something, they know it, and as long as there is a reasonable response as to what the sanction should be, they usually go along with that.  So I think that's the bulk of the numbers.  Then the second assumption that I think students oftentimes make erroneously is that if I don't think that I got a square deal here that I'll appeal to a student panel and that students, because they're students, will have a better understanding of my circumstances and give me a break.  And the data, and I'd have difficulty producing this, but the old data on this showed that students were more severe with their student peers than a lot of administrators were.  And so it was kind of an interesting juxtaposition with all of that.

Senator Kalter: So it's a good thing we give them a mixed panel of faculty, staff, and students.  We're such softies.

Senator Horst: We might be able to extrapolate our son or daughter.

President Dietz: I think it's a larger context, you know, that age and stage brings with you.  And students are like, well, doggone it!  If I've got to toe the line here, Fred and James should have to toe the line too.  So it's interesting, that dynamic, though with all of this.  But I think that's what that refers to.  

Senator Marx: Thank you.  We find that in grading if you hand students things to grade, they'll be harsher than the professors would be.

Senator Kalter: That's interesting.  I don't find that.

Senator Marx: There are some studies.  It depends on what it is, of course, but in a lot of cases that's going to be true.

Senator Kalter: Interesting.  All right.  Moving along.  We're going to Tuberculosis Screening.

10.25.18.01 From Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Policy 2.1.16 Tuberculosis Screening for International Students MARKUP (Information item 11/07/18)
10.25.18.02 From Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Policy 2.1.16 Tuberculosis Screening for International Students CLEAN (Information item 11/07/18)

Senator Kalter: Do you want to say anything about this one?

Senator Marx: Sure.  When I first read this, I was quite concerned that a student could be not in compliance with this and that all they have is a block on their next semester registration.  So, in other words, they might be contagious and roaming around the campus for a semester before anything happens to them.  But we met with a sizeable group from Student Health Services and from Student Affairs and also from International Program.  And Student Health Service says that they follow the policies that are stated by the CDC as well as the McLean County Health Department and that the risk is small.  We asked them how many are not in compliance.  As of our meeting, it was 10 out of the something like 200 international students.  We had other questions about immunizations and whether or not as we increase our international student population we need to make adjustments to these policies and the answer was largely no.  We have no control over our students that travel internationally and come back and perhaps are exposed.  We don't do anything to screen them, and it's not recommended by any of these programs.  So in the end, all we ended up changing was the number of days they have to comply.  It's the first 10 days.  And the other thing was just to change the website and phone number.  So we ended up not changing much at all in this policy.

Senator Kalter: You might have already answered this, but two of my questions were:  Why tuberculosis? And why only international students?  

Senator Marx: Right.  I was saying that among our student population as a whole, there are students that might be exposed to tuberculosis, but they're not subject to this policy.  For example, let's say they're education majors and they go out to a prison and work with prisoners.  That's a higher risk population.  Or if they go out to hospitals or nursing homes or something like that, they might be exposed to higher risk.  But again, even for all of those students, the CDC doesn't recommend any screening.  Once they are diagnosed as being a carrier or having had it in the past and it's dormant, then the McLean County Health Department monitors those people, keeps track of them, makes periodic contact with them and so forth because if a person had it in the past it could be just dormant and then eventually it comes back.

Senator Kalter: In other words, that's why it's TB, because it can go…  No, that can't be the answer because there are other things that can go dormant.

Senator Marx: Oh, you were asking about other diseases?

Senator Kalter: Yeah.  So in other words, if you look at the title…

Senator Marx: This is just about the Tuberculosis Screening.

Senator Kalter: Why do we have a policy that's about only TB screening instead of just communicable disease screening?  And why does it apply only to international students and not to all students?

President Dietz: I think this is an INS requirement.

Senator Kalter: Okay.

Senator Marx: When I specifically asked about that, they didn't say it was.  And more comes out of the CDC than anything else.  They're following the policies from the CDC.  

Senator Kalter: Maybe I can ask them that on the floor.  Maybe we could invite them and ask them.

Senator Marx: We can.  

President Dietz: You also may want to invite some of the folks from International Affairs on this because it's a two-fer.  But I think that adding the additional language "and immunization review."  While the policy is about tuberculosis, the immunization review is have you had this shot, that shot, and that shot?  

Senator Marx: Exactly.  That's why that was added.  And that matches the language of the existing policy at Student Health Services.  They had an additional item in their policy, which was that if a student was non-compliant, that they might also have…  Or if they were a graduate student and they had an assistantship that they would block them from being paid.  And to their knowledge, this has never been enforced.  So they suggested we not put it in the policy because they have no intention of enforcing that.

Senator Kalter: Okay.

President Dietz: I don't think you can block somebody getting payment for time that they've worked.

Senator Kalter: Right.  Let's hope not.  

Senator Marx: Well, it would be blocked for the next semester.  I don't know.  But they weren't interested in having that enforced.  Their version of the policy was 15 years old, so it predated anyone that is at Student Health Services.

Senator Kalter: That's a little bit why I'm asking the question because TB was an early 1900s disease for the most part.

Senator Marx: But it's had a resurgence.

Senator Kalter: Yeah, that's different across the world, I'm sure.

Senator Marx: The incidence among the Asian population is the highest.  It's 18 per 100,000.  Anyway, if you're interested I have an article that gives the numbers.

Senator Kalter: No, that's all right.  It's just a little bit odd to have a policy that says "Tuberculosis Screening for International Students" rather than, you know, "health expectations for students" or something like that.

Senator Marx: Because the risk is extremely low for people in the United States.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  Because so many of us are immunized.  Yeah.

Senator Marx: Aside from that, though, the incidence of TB in the United States is very, very small.  But it's not small outside the United States.  

Senator Kalter: Okay.  All right.

Senator Mainieri: I actually did have a question about the insertion of "an immunization review."  So is that all immunizations, then, or specific to TB?

Senator Marx: There are specific immunizations that are required, and that's in our separate Immunization Policy, which needs to be updated.  

Senator Horst: Should that be cited?

Senator Blum: I had a question.  It was like, so, yeah.  Now it's…  I didn't realize there was a separate Immunization Policy.  

Senator Marx: There is, but that covers all students and it needs to be updated.  

Senator Blum: Yeah, well what I was sort of wondering if instead of "tuberculosis screening" it should say "tuberculosis screening and immunization review policy for…"  It seems more global, right? 
Senator Marx: I understood, but the primary purpose of this policy is about the TB screening.  The immunization review just happens at the same time.  

Senator Mainieri: I wonder if we, instead of adding it here as part of these rules, instead say a statement, "this is in addition to the Immunization Rule Policy" (whatever it is) "expected of all students" or something.  Because I agree.  I read that and I was like, this is a very specific policy, and then we're talking about the general review.  For example…
Senator Marx: Depending on where they're from, there may be additional immunizations that are required, and that's all covered by, as I remember, I think it was the U.S. Consulate or Embassy from wherever they're getting their visa.  At the time that they get their visa is when they have some specifications for immunizations there.  So in most cases they're covered.  

Senator Mainieri: But if they fail to meet the immunization review, then these sanctions would go into place?

Senator Marx: That's correct.  That is correct.  And when the Registrar's office receives this information from Health Services, they don't have a separate code for TB block or immunization block.  It all goes under the immunization block.

Senator Mainieri: And in the Immunization Policy, is there a similar sanction for all students that if they don't meet the immunization review then they have this?

Senator Marx: Yes.

Senator Campbell: So I'm wondering because I'm reading the sentence of the tenth day of class of his or her entering a semester, do we do gender neutral language in our policies typically or not historically?

Senator Kalter: We had a huge debate about that about two or three years ago.

Senator Horst: A little debate.

Senator Mainieri: Was the debate big or little?

Senator Kalter: It was huge.  In other words, you would like to change it to the grammatically incorrect "their"?  

Senator Campbell: I just wasn't sure if that's concurrent with the rest of our policies or not.
Senator Kalter: Let's see.  Where did we leave that?  We left it because Senator Daddario left the University and then Senator Lessoff stepped off the Senate and so we just left the debate about the gender neutral to the winds.  So, you can always bring it up on the floor and ask.  It would probably be a normal motion to amend because there was enough controversy about it two or three years ago.  Now, things might have changed, but there was enough controversy about it and then we had a debate about, well, if you change it in one policy but not another, then what should you do?

Senator Marx: I'd be willing to make it "the tenth day of classes of the student's entering semester" where it completely removes any kind of gender association.  

Senator Kalter: Right.  That's what we've been trying to do is sort of substitute that kind of language.  So why don't we do that where we can?

Senator Blum: That's a good idea.

Senator Kalter: I remember a conversation that year about "the individual's," you know, (apostrophe s), and that was there to…

Ms. Christensen: So do you want me to put that in or do you want Alex to bring that up on the floor?

Senator Kalter: I think perhaps that seems like a fairly neutral one, right?  So let's just change it in the policy.  The "their" would be controversial.  Somebody's bound to bring it up on the other side, right?  All right.  So let's see.  Recruitment Policy.  

10.25.18.03 From Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Policy 3.1.45 Recruitment MARKUP (Information item 11/07/18)
10.25.18.04 From Administrative Affairs and Budget Committee: Policy 3.1.45 Recruitment CLEAN (Information item 11/07/18)
Senator Kalter: Anything about this one?

Senator Marx: Yes, I contacted Sam about this, and he told me that HR had already made edits to this policy and it was never forwarded to anyone.  So it's forwarded to us now, and so we adopted those edits.  And they wanted to make it less specific because all of those hiring practices are on the Provost's website for department chairs, so it's easily adjusted there depending on budget fluctuations or what not.  Rather than to be more specific, it's better to be less specific.  So this matches what they're currently doing.  

Senator Kalter: If there's nothing about that, we can move back to the motion that is on the floor, which is the approval of the amended proposed Senate agenda.  So we're taking off the Textbook Affordability Committee Annual Report, University Library Committee, and University Hearing Panel / Appeals Board Annual Reports and shoving those forward.  We're going to take off the IBHE-FAC Annual Report, I should say, and substitute the Multicultural Center one, and that's it, right?  There's no other needed changes?  Awesome.  All right.  

The motion was unanimously approved.

09.13.18.11 From Senate Chair: Policy 6.1.13 Amplification CURRENT
10.25.18.05 From Senate Chair: Responses of noise disruptions
10.25.18.06 From Senate Chair: No Noise disruptions
Senator Kalter: All right.  Let's see.  Going down to the Amplification stuff.  Did you have fun reading this stuff?  What do you think?  Where are we here?  So we've got some people who are not bothered by the noise or there is no noise.  There are other people who are super bothered by the noise, and there is some super noise, especially the Smash Mouth noise.
Senator Horst: Which is singing, correct?

Senator Kalter: Apparently.  

Senator Horst: I protest any policy that prohibits singing in the quad not amplified.  We have to have the right to raise our voices in song.

Senator Kalter: I will say that in terms of the Amplification Policy, we might want to clarify somewhere eventually in the policy that it's not just electronic amplification but just noise level, right?  It's about noise level and sort of how loud are you being.  Are people hearing you inside of buildings in a way that is disruptive?  But I don't think that we want to sort of be talking about the policy.  I think this is more about enforcement.  Is that what people saw, or did you see yes, we want to be talking about the policy and changes to the policy?  
Senator Mainieri: It's hard to determine if it was an enforcement issue.  Some of the responses that did mention noise did say what time of day it was happening, but others didn't.  So it's hard to determine when some of these things are happening.  It also seemed to me a lot of these are one-time occurrences.  There were a few that said kind of regular things that were happening, but several of the ones reporting disturbance seemed to be more of a one-time thing.
Senator Kalter: I was shocked that we got so much feedback from Felmley and zero feedback, or negative feedback, from Schroeder.  That was shocking.  And I had to provoke it, and then when I did, they all said – even Ross Kennedy said – it doesn't bother me.  And he's right on the corner on the second floor of that building.  So that made me wonder whether it actually got sent to the faculty in the building.  Like, did it go to them through their chairs?

Senator Marx: I can tell you my chair did not forward the e-mail.

Senator Kalter: Yeah.  I wondered about that.

Senator Marx: Yeah, but had he…  Over the last many years, the biggest disruptions were due to jackhammers when they were tearing up the concrete outside of Moulton on all sides.  That was much more of a distraction/disruption than the occasional crowd noise we might hear or people singing or whatever.  That, to me, was very disturbing.  I don't know why they were doing it during the day.  But of course that's not happening now.

Senator Blum: It seems like it's just enforcement.  I think it's not a policy issue.  But, I mean, being sensitive to people's – it's a workplace, right?

Senator Kalter: Maybe this is one of those many, many things where faculty in particular need to know who to call when they are being disturbed but as usual do not know who to call because they don't know the policy.  So it's sort of the perennial how do you get the information out when there's so much noise in the environment that you're constantly getting various types of important information out to people and it doesn't sink in and it can't sink in because you're so distracted.  
Senator Blum: And honestly, there also needs to be a way to deal with the exception.  Like if you're teaching classes in the evening and things like that.  I mean, they're not really clearly covered by the policy.  All right?  And if there is, in fact, whatever.  Something's going on.  It may even be temporary for whatever – construction or whatever.  Like, how do we deal with and rectify…  Or maybe the band is practicing or someone is singing regularly outside.  It just happens to be on Wednesday night where this class is.  And, you know, it could be easily moved and stuff like that so that…  I mean, I teach a ton of night classes.  So, I mean, that's not even covered by the policy.

Senator Kalter: That is probably the part of the policy that bothers me the most and was what provoked the question in the first place.  Somebody coming across the quad at around 5:30 and hearing all this noise and saying, how are the night classes proceeding with all of this noise that's on the quad?  So, maybe the next time that the Senate looks at the policy, the two things they can look at are sort of making sure it's clear that it's about noise, not just amplified noise.  In other words, not just artificially amplified noise, and thinking about maybe the University Quad can stay on that list about weekdays and weekends but that for the Quad, maybe 8:00 is more of a reasonable hour for the noise to start during the weekday.  During the Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday days when night classes are being held.  But I'm not particularly inclined to send this back to Administrative Affairs and Budget right now since you guys already looked at it last year.  So I can e-mail the chairs again and say we talked about this and it would be very helpful for you to let your faculty know when they have a problem with noise that they should call, and who they should call, to have somebody go out onto the Quad and say, hey you guys, tone it down.  There are classes going on.
Senator Marx: That would be very helpful.  

Senator Kalter: Awesome.

Senator Horst: You know, Susan, I remember hearing about this policy and somebody told us, oh, it only happens…  People only get exceptions like three times a year.  It was in that other task force.  And then, like three days later, there was somebody with amplification on the Quad and I said, "Do you guys know about the Amplification Policy?"  And they said, oh yes, they got permission.  So it would be interesting to see how many times people get permission to violate this policy.

Senator Kalter: That's actually a really good point, Martha.

Senator Horst: Because it seems like it's happening a lot more than what we heard in that other task force of three times a year.

Senator Kalter: Yeah, and that maybe because people don't know how to complain, that the people giving the permission are thinking, well, this is not a problem so we'll give more and more exceptions.  So I'll ask John Davenport, Dean of Students, how often are exceptions made to the policy and sort of what are the circumstances.  Like, why do you give exceptions?

Senator Horst: And then whenever anybody reviews this amplification equipment, is that bullhorns?  Is that just electronic amplification equipment?  That could be clarified.  Are you talking about bullhorns in protests?  But I don't want to go in a direction where it's just defined as loud because in music, students certainly could be defined as loud but not amplified.

Senator Kalter: Although I would say that singing Smash Mouth 20 times outside of the Hall of Business is irritating and obnoxious and really ought to fall under the policy.  It's sort of like, you could do it in the middle of the Quad instead of right outside everybody's classroom.  Right?

Senator Horst: Well, the band is loud and irritates people, but it needs to happen.  It's a classroom activity.

Senator Kalter: Oh, no.  I'm not talking about…  It sounds, to me, like that complaint was a totally spontaneous – not spontaneous, but a half spontaneous – type of thing.
Senator Mainieri: I'm not sure how any amendment to a policy would ever curb those type of activities.  I mean, on a college campus, spontaneous random singing is going to happen and I don't think a policy is going to stop it.

Senator Horst: And the drumline is loud and, you know, the band competition starts at 6:00 in the morning on band day, and I can hear it from Normal Avenue.

Senator Kalter: I think that's about telling Dr. Wieland, please feel free to contact either the students directly or the Dean of Students office when this happens and complain.  Right?  It's been going on for three years in the months of August and September approximately two to three times per week.  So, you know, first of all they can find out whether it's part of a class, which I don't think it is, and the class could be asked, can you move that over?  Can you move it somewhere else?  And if it's not part of a class, they can be told you're disrupting academic stuff.  Right?  I know that we have to make exceptions always for everything that Music does.

Senator Horst: Yes, we do!

Senator Kalter: That's super important.

Senator Horst: I don't want to restrict any kind of spontaneous singing.

Senator Kalter: The policies apply to everybody on campus except for Music.

Senator Horst: But anyway, they might think about bullhorns.

Senator Kalter: Okay.  Yeah, all right.  Next one.  Let's see, how far from our hard stop time are we?  We're about ten minutes.  

10.12.18.04 From Textbook Affordability Committee: Email from Anne Shelley chair of TAC (Dist. to Rules Committee)

10.12.18.05 From Textbook Affordability Committee:  Textbook Affordability Committee Blue Book Revision 2018091(Dist. to Rules Committee)

10.12.18.06- From Textbook Affordability Committee:  Textbook Affordability Strategic Plan 2018(Dist. to Rules Committee)

10.24.18.01 From Library Committee: Proposed Changes to Library Committee charge MARKUP (Dist. to Rules Committee)

10.24.18.02 From Library Committee: Proposed Changes to Library Committee charge CLEAN (Dist. to Rules Committee)

Senator Kalter: Textbook Affordability Committee and the proposed changes to the Library Committee are both being routed to Rules.  Does anybody have anything on either one of those?  Nothing?  Martha, the only thing that I saw, I'm not entirely sure why the Textbook Affordability Committee decided to eliminate "examine different textbook issues for each college" because that seemed like really useful stuff.
Senator Horst: It's sort of like what we were just talking about.

Senator Kalter: So I looked at what they crossed out and what they put in, and it looked like they were fairly obvious substitutions.  But that one kind of stood out as, gosh, that was really useful information that you just provided about each college having differential costs for textbooks, but you're taking it out of the policy.  So that might be one thing that people look at.  All right.  If there is nothing else on either of those…  Wow, we are ready to adjourn ahead of our hard stop time!  For the third time in a year.  The third time in a semester!

Senator Horst: Let's talk more about singing on the Quad.
President Dietz: Let's go outside and sing Smash Mouth.

Senator Kalter: You'd have to teach it to me first!

Senator Blum: It's a highly efficient Exec.

Senator Kalter: It is a highly efficient Exec.  This is awesome.  Of course it helps when three people were gone, right?  Thanks, Larry.  All right.  

Adjournment

Motion by Senator Marx, seconded by Senator Campbell, to adjourn. The motion was unanimously approved. 
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